
Property: Number: No 116 Cancellation Book 
No 117 
No 118 
No 119 – The Barracks/Garda Station 

Property Modern Number: 51 
Property Modern: Modern Shop Name 

 
Vintage Clothing Shop 
 

 
 



 
 
 

Property 
Previous: 

Previous Shop Names 
 

No 116, 117, 118 
Previously: Sawyers  
Previously: Mernagh’s 
Previously: Redmonds 
 
No 119: 
Currently: An Garda Siochana – The Barracks 
Previously: Civic Guards 
Previously: Royal Irish Constabulary 
 



 Landlord  Time Period from the 
Cancellation Book 

Occupier  Further Details 

Stephen Ram 1853 – 1860 
 

William Stephens  

Stephen Ram 1868 
 

 

Anne Stephens  

In fee 1869-1873 
 

Joseph Bates  

In fee  
then Reps of Joseph Bates  

1874-1881 
 
 
 
 

 
 

116: Reps of Joseph Bates 
117: Reps of Joseph Bates 
118: Reps of Joseph Bates 
119: Reps of Joseph Bates 

 

 1882 – 1883   

In Fee 1884 – 1891 116,117, 118: 
 
James Bates then Harriet Bates 
then Michael Flusk. 
 
Harriet Bates then Michael Flusk 
then VACANT. 
 
119: Eliza Bates is renting the 
house part. 

 
 
Eliza Bates died 25th May 1892. 

In fee to James Redmond 1892-1898 116, 117, 118: 
Michael Flusk then Eliza Flusk, 
then James Redmond 
 
116 to 119: Michael Flusk then 
Vacant 

 
Property is in fee. 
 
 
 
 



 
119: Eliza Bates then becomes the 
Barracks and is exempt 

 
 
1896 the constabulary took over  

In fee 1899-1904 
 

116, 117, 118:  
James Redmond 
 
119: Constabulary - exempt 

1901 census 
James Redmond was a hardware business. 
Ellen M Redmond 
Peter Redmond  
Ironmonger business 
 
 
 
 

James M Redmond 1905-1915 
 

116,117,118:  James Redmond 
then William B. Jackson. 
 
119: Constabulary - exempt 

James Redmond now a widow  
His children are peter and Margaret, Daniel and 
alice. 
 
1911 census Cryans RIC  
1911 census Kidney RIC 
 
Cryan’s descendents ran a business in middle main 
street. Hardware shop. Another descendents 
married into kanes. 

James M Redmond 1916-1930 
 

 

116,117, 118:  
William B Jackson  
 
119: Constabulary - exempt 

 

James M Redmond 1931-1941 
 

 

William B Jackson then Margaret 
Flusk 
 
119: Civic Guards; land site for 
Civic Guards 

W.B. Jackson; St. Michaels Catalogue 1934: 
General Hardware Merchants 

James M Redmond, then 
Margaret Flusk 

1942-1983 
 

116, 117, 118a – Margaret Flusk 
then Minister of Defence 

 
 



 
 
Mrs. Kathleen Mernagh 

 
116, 117, 118b -  Donal T. Doran 
 
119: Civic Guards 

 
 
Donal Doran was a hairdresser (1969) 
Kathleen Mernagh died 1991. Her husband Aidan 
Mernagh 1965 he was vetinary surgeon. Buried in 
St. Michael’s Gorey. 
Kathleen started the bridge club in the mid 1960’s 
which is called the 51 bridge club. 

 2018 
 

 

Garda Siochana  

 

No 51 is situated at the top of the Main Street. The property today in 2019 is now a Clothes Vintage Shop and has access via a covered archway into a large 

yard and buildings behind. 

Also attached is the Barracks building which has been renovated which now houses An Garda Siochana.  

The buildings appear as a cluster in the cancellation books as 116.117,118 and 119 with changes happening over time as the occupiers and business evolved 

and changed.  

Indeed it seems the building which houses An Garda Siochana now in modern times (2019); in previous life the Royal Irish Constabulary was a private 

dwelling house in the Victorian period before it got adapted into a barracks type building in the 1890’s when bars were placed on the windows on the lower 

level and a separate entrance was added to the right side of the building.  

This new entrance also had on the upper level extensive windows which gave a view down the main street so it could be monitored by the RIC. 



           



 

The families that occupied the buildings are as follows: 

The Bates Family 

In the early part of the century the famous family of Bates occupied here and ran a successful coach building business founded 1820 with numerous 

workshops out the back. Edward Bates was working in the business and his son Joseph Bates took over the business. Edward Bates died 12th April 1864 and 

he left £600. The Beddy Brothers also trained here before they opened up their coach works in Carnew.  

The Bates family occupied some of the houses here as well with Eliza Bates living in number 119 of the cancellation book. Eliza died 25th May 1892. 

Joseph Bates Coach Builder married Margaret Williams on 29th January 1861. Joseph Bates died 24th August 1874 and left £7,000 pounds in his will.  



The property sat with the representatives of Joseph Bates for a number of years when the property was sold to Michael Flusk around 1881.  

James, Eliza and Harriet Bates continued to rent some parts of the property from Michael Flusk. The old family of Bates are buried in Market Square. 

The Bates Family then eventually moved down to St. Michael’s Road and continued their coachworks business there; which evolved from coachworks into a 

garage business which ran until the 1970’s.  

 

The Redmond Family of No. 51 Main Street. 



 

James Redmond was the landlord of the property and it was rented to Michael Flusk. Michael Flusk died on the 7th April 1893 and he was a retired victualler 

at 51 Main Street Gorey; and his effects of £13,288 12s and 8d was left to Eliza Mary Flusk; widow and executor. It seems then that James Redmond ran a 

business here himself as an ironmonger (hardware) business from 1893 to around 1915. 

James married Ellen M. Redmond (nee ?) and they had a number of children who were Peter, Margaret, Daniel and Alice. 

In the census 1901 the family are recorded as follows: 



 

Ellen Redmond died in 1908. And in the census 1911; James Redmond and family are recorded as: 



 

James M. Redmond died on the 2nd March 1912; late of 51 Main Street; his estate was left to Peter M. Doyle and Annie Redmond Spinster the effects of 

£2,146 18s 4d 

Annie Redmond was James’s sister. 

The premises was rented out to a William B. Jackson who then runs a hardware business here at No. 51. until the 1930’s. 



 

In the latter years the Mernaghs take over the property at No. 51; and Mrs Mernagh started up a bridge club in the 1960’s and it was called No. 51 after the 

Main Street business. 
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